I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Nicholas W. Bartz (Bartz) is the Petitioner and is a resident of the State of Michigan, at 1405 N West Avenue, Suite 152, Jackson, Michigan 49202.

II. CITATION TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

The Unpublished Opinion of the Court of Appeals, Division I, that Bartz requests this Court to review was filed on October 20, 2014. *See* APPENDIX, at APP-1.

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The issues Bartz presents to this Court for review are:

- 1. Whether a non-resident Personal Guarantor as defendant is bound by the same rules applicable to a contract assignee as plaintiff with respect to submission to a foreign court's personal jurisdiction and venue of an action?
- 2. Whether this Court's well-established rules of construction regarding a Personal Guarantee are still applicable and preclude non-resident Bartz from being subject to the personal jurisdiction of the State of Washington and venue in the King County Superior Court?
- 3. Whether the abject and total absence of constitutionally required significant minimum contacts with the State of Washington preclude statutory long arm personal jurisdiction over non-resident Bartz?
- 4. Whether the trial court erred by issuing its Judgment Summary And Order Granting Summary Judgment And Denying Defendants' CR 12(b) Motion To Dismiss dated September 20, 2013 (Clerk's Papers [CP] at 161); and erred by issuing its Amended Final Judgment Summary And Order Granting Summary Judgment And Denying Defendants' CR 12(b) Motion To Dismiss dated October 4, 2013 (CP at 164)?
- 5. Whether Bartz is entitled to an award of his reasonable attorney fees and costs under RCW 4.28.185; and Radiance Capital should be denied its requested/award of attorney fees and costs based on its contract with sole named Debtor Health Pro Solutions LLC, as to which no judgment was entered by the Superior Court?

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 1 OF 19

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

For a period of time Bartz was the Managing Member of Health Pro Solutions, LLC (HPS LLC), a now defunct Nevada limited liability company. While doing business in the State of Arizona, HPS LLC sought financing for an equipment purchase through an independent broker also located in the State of Arizona. That independent broker found financing available through Radiance Capital, LLC (Radiance Capital), a limited liability company located in the City of Tacoma, County of Pierce, State of Washington. The independent broker presented an Equipment Financing Agreement (Agreement, see APPENDIX, at APP-9) to HPS LLC which was signed in the State of Arizona by Bartz in his official corporate capacity as Managing Member. Bartz never had any personal contact with or dealings with anyone from Radiance Capital. Bartz signed a Personal Guarantee included with the Agreement. The sole Debtor was expressly named and identified in the Agreement as HPS LLC. One of the terms of the Agreement required HPS LLC to waive objections to personal jurisdiction and submit to venue in the courts of King County, Washington. The Personal Guarantee signed by Bartz had no such express waiver or voluntary submission to jurisdiction and venue. The ultimate question presented is whether Bartz, an out-of-state resident, is subject to the jurisdiction of the King County Superior Court under either Washington's long-arm statute, RCW 4.28.185, or the terms of the Personal Guarantee he signed in his individual capacity?

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 2 OF 19

A. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Out-of-State Residency

Bartz is an unmarried individual who resided in the State of Arizona generally from 1999 through February 2012 but with a brief residency in the State of California in 2011. He has resided in the State of Michigan since March 2012, and his present mailing address is 1405 N West Avenue, Suite 152, Jackson, Michigan 49202. CP at 121-22, ¶ 3.2 Bartz was the former Managing Member of Health Pro Solutions, LLC (HPS LLC), a Nevada Limited Liability Company that was formed July 3, 2001 (Nevada Secretary of State Public Records, Domestic Limited Liability Company No. LLC-7075-2001; Nevada Business ID# NV20011072244). CP at 122, ¶ 4. After Bartz suffered a permanent disability with his eyesight, HPS LLC went out of business; its Nevada Business License expired July 31, 2011, and was administratively terminated by the Nevada Secretary of State's Office effective November 15, 2011 (Nevada Secretary of State Public Records, Administrative Status Change, Document No. 2011-079721848), and its present status is "Revoked" according to the Nevada Secretary of State Public Records. CP at 122, ¶ 5. The Registered Agent for HPS LLC is listed as John D. Lee, 2830 S. Jones Blvd, Suite 1, Las Vegas, Nevada 89146.

 $^{^1}$ Bartz was divorced prior to May 2008 and was then remarried in October 2011 but had that marriage annulled in January 2012. CP at 121, \P 2.

² Prior to 2009 Bartz owned a house at 4535 Eagle Drive, Jackson, Michigan. In 2009 that house was foreclosed on and resold to persons Bartz does not know and with whom he has no relationship. CP at 121-22, ¶ 3.

(Nevada Secretary of State Public Records). CP at 122, ¶ 6. Bartz' business address at the time HPS LLC was formed as a Nevada Limited Liability Company was 8912 E Pinnacle Peak Rd, #430, Scottsdale, Arizona 85255. (Nevada Secretary of State Public Records). CP at 122, ¶ 7.

Absence of Recent Personal Contacts

For only that period of time from April 15, 1983 through June 25, 1992 Bartz was licensed by the State of Washington through reciprocity as an Osteopathic Physician and Surgeon, License # OP00000978 (Washington State Department of Health Provider Credential Public Records); however, Bartz never practiced as an Osteopathic Physician in the State of Washington. CP at 122-23, ¶ 8. Bartz was originally licensed as an Osteopathic Physician by the State of Michigan in 1982, and was further licensed as an Osteopathic Physician by the State of Arizona in 1986. CP at 122-23, ¶ 8. Bartz is not presently licensed in any State and is retired due to medical disability. CP at 122-23, ¶ 8.

Absence of Business Contacts

Bartz has never resided in nor conducted any business in, and since June 25, 1992 he has not been licensed as an Osteopathic Physician to practice in, the State of Washington. CP at 123, ¶ 9. At no time since its formation in 2001 through its termination in 2011 did HPS LLC conduct or operate any business in the State of Washington. CP at 123, ¶ 10. HPS LLC was never registered as a foreign or any form of limited liability company or other business entity with any office or agency of the State of Washington. CP at 123,

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 4 OF 19

Equipment Financing Agreement

In May 2008, HPS LLC was conducting its business in the State of Arizona and was referred to an independent lease broker, also operating in the State of Arizona, to recommend a possible lease or financing source for acquisition of equipment. CP at 123, ¶11. By and through the broker and not subject to negotiation, an Equipment Financing Agreement was arranged through Radiance Capital, LLC (as Creditor) with HPS LLC as the sole Debtor. CP at 123, ¶12. All papers associated with the financing agreement from Radiance Capital were delivered and signed through the broker in the State of Arizona, with no direct contact made between HPS LLC and Bartz with Radiance Capital, LLC. CP at 123, ¶12. The equipment that was financed by the Agreement with Radiance Capital, LLC was in fact initially delivered to an address in the State of Michigan. CP at 123, ¶13.

In 2011 the equipment was moved to the State of Arizona and was stored and temporarily used by Fred Goldblatt, a family physician in Arizona. At that time, Dr Goldblatt agreed to assume the Agreement payments to Radiance Capital, LLC in exchange for his use of the equipment. Dr Goldblatt shortly thereafter filed for bankruptcy and the equipment went missing. CP at 124, ¶ 14. Subsequently, HPS LLC made several attempts to locate the whereabouts of the equipment and reacquire it, but its attorney was unsuccessful and failed to locate the equipment. CP at 124, ¶ 15. Presently, the whereabouts of the equipment that HPS LLC financed through

PETITION FOR REVIEW

-- PAGE 5 OF 19

Radiance Capital, LLC is unknown. CP at 124, ¶ 16.

As the solely named and identified DEBTOR, and if otherwise legal, the standard/boilerplate language of the Equipment Financing Agreement set forth the following stipulation as to jurisdiction and forum/venue selection applicable solely to HPS LLC as the *Debtor*:

CHOICE OF LAW; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. This Agreement shall be deemed fully executed and performed in the State of Washington³ and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws thereof without regard to the conflicts of laws rules of such State. *DEBTOR* agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of the State of Washington in King County. Each Creditor and *DEBTOR* hereby waives any right to trial by jury of any action involving this Agreement.

CP at 130, ¶ 26 (emphasis on **DEBTOR** added).

Jurisdictional and Venue/Forum Issues

In his signing the Personal Guarantee solely in his individual capacity, Bartz nowhere agreed or otherwise consented to personal jurisdiction over him by the State of Washington nor to any Washington-based forum, venue and choice of law selections that might otherwise, if legal and proper under all the circumstances, be applicable to HPS LLC under the Agreement as a totally separate and distinct legal entity established under Nevada law. CP at 124, ¶ 17. The Personal Guarantee, as drafted by Radiance Capital, contains the following language:

This standard/boilerplate assertion is patently false, as HPS LLC was at all times in and a resident of the State of Arizona, CP at 122-23, ¶¶ 7 and 11; the Agreement was procured by an independent broker in the State of Arizona and executed by HPS LLC in the State of Arizona, CP at 123, ¶ 12; and the equipment purchased with the financing was in fact delivered to an address in the State of Michigan, CP at 123, ¶ 13.

PERSONAL GUARANTEE(S)

The undersigned guarantee and promise to make all of the payments and perform all Debtors' obligations as specified in this Equipment Financing Agreement. Each of our liabilities is primary and joint and several and shall not be affected by any settlement, extension, renewal or modification of the Agreement, by the discharge of [sic] release of the Debtor obligations or by the taking or release of additional guarantors or security for the performance of the Agreement. The undersigned waive any rights we may have to (a) presentment, demand, protect, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, notice of default under the Agreement [or] any other notices related to this guaranty or the Agreement and (b) the right to require Creditor to proceed against Debtor or to pursue any other remedy in Creditor's power. The undersigned also waive any other rights and defenses available to a guarantor by reason of application [of] case or statutory law. The undersigned agree that we are liable for Creditor's attorney's fees and costs in enforcing this guaranty, whether or not suit is filed. The undersigned acknowledge that this guaranty inures to the benefit of Creditor's assigns.

CP at 132 (emphasis added). This Personal Guarantee was signed by Bartz solely in his personal/individual capacity on May 20, 2008 in the State of Arizona. CP at 123, ¶ 12.

Although the Personal Guarantee requires Bartz to "perform all Debtors' obligations" such phrase is nowhere expressly defined in the Personal Guarantee. However, this performance language is specifically set forth and described in Paragraph 14 of the Equipment Financing Agreement in the following terms as drafted by Radiance Capital:

If Debtor fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder, Creditor may perform such obligations, and Debtor shall (a) reimburse Creditor the cost of such performance and related expenses, and (b) pay Creditor the late charge contemplated in Paragraph 21 on the cost and expenses of such performance.

CP at 129 (Paragraph 14, emphasis added). As Bartz clearly pointed out to

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 7 OF 19

the Court of Appeals, the phrase "perform any of its [i.e., Debtor's] obligations hereunder [i.e., the Equipment Financing Agreement]" in Paragraph 14 defines and describes the intended and express scope of the phrase to "perform all Debtors' obligations as specified in this Equipment Financing Agreement" as set forth in the Personal Guarantee. Thus, in addition to making all the payments thereunder, obligations under the Personal Guarantee can fairly and obviously be read and construed to mean and be limited to the various provisions therein regarding HPS LLC's obligations relating to keeping the location of the collateral, making alterations or improvements to the collateral, maintaining and repairing the collateral, paying taxes related to the collateral, insuring the collateral, and similar provisions the performance of which may be measured as compliant or noncompliant with the Agreement thus used as metrics giving rise to an action for breach. A boilerplate language standard provision by Radiance Capital under which HPS LLC "agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of the State of Washington in King County" is not such a measure of performance to which Bartz is bound simply by signing the Personal Guarantee in his individual capacity. Moreover, Paragraph 14 is totally counter-intuitive to any objective manifestation of mutual intent that Bartz was somehow obligated to submit himself to the personal jurisdiction of the Washington courts (for to construe in this manner would mean that Radiance Capital could take Bartz' place in its own lawsuit against him for failure of HPS LLC to perform??).

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 8 OF 19

Under applicable and relevant rules of *guaranty* contract construction, and construed in favor of Bartz and most strongly against Radiance Capital where reviewed by this Court *de novo*, by signing the Personal Guarantee individually Bartz did not submit himself to the personal jurisdiction of Washington courts. The King County Superior Court therefore did not have personal jurisdiction over Michigan citizen Nicholas W. Bartz under and pursuant to the Personal Guarantee signed by him in his individual capacity.

As for respecting the separate identify and nature of Health Pro Solutions, LLC, Bartz always treated it as a separate, legal entity with its own books and no commingling of finances. CP at 124,¶17. Bartz has not and does not consent to personal jurisdiction of any Washington State Court over him and retains all his rights and privileges as a citizen of the State of Michigan. CP at 124,¶18.4

B. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

Bartz' counsel filed a Notice of Appearance that expressly preserved all defenses under and pursuant to CR 12(b) (see APPENDIX, at APP-18). Radiance Capital filed a Motion for Summary Judgment and Bartz filed a CR 12(b) Motion to Dismiss grounded on CR 12(b)(2) and (3). The trial court heard arguments on these cross-motions and denied Bartz' CR 12(b) Motion to Dismiss and granted Radiance Capital's Motion for Summary Judgment.

⁴ The referenced Declaration and Supplemental Declaration were made by Bartz solely for the purpose to support a Rule 12(b) Motion to Dismiss the above-captioned action as to Bartz personally, and as may also have been applicable under the law to Health Pro Solutions, LLC. CP at 125, ¶22; CP at 157, ¶8.

An Amended final judgment was entered on Radiance Capital's stipulation that the Judgment entered was solely against Nicholas W. Bartz, all other Defendants were dismissed. Subsequently, a timely appeal to the Court of Appeals, Division I, was filed.

Following briefing and oral argument, the Court of Appeals issued its Unpublished Opinion that was filed on October 20, 2014. In its *de novo* review, the Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court's denial of Bartz' CR 12(b) Motion to Dismiss and the entry of Summary Judgment against Bartz.

V. ARGUMENT

SUMMARY

The Court of Appeals' affirmance of the trial court's decision was grounded solely on the Personal Guarantee signed by Bartz in his individual capacity. Not having to reach the issue of long arm jurisdiction, the Court of Appeals rested its decision solely on a 1975 federal 9th Circuit Court of Appeals' decision in *Republic International Corporation v. Amco Engineers, Inc.*, 516 F.2d 161, 168 n.11 (9th Cir. 1975) (the plaintiff assignee of a contract was *obligated* to "do every act and thing necessary to perform all of the conditions of said contracts" as agreed by the assignor, including "plac[ing] themselves under" and being bound to the original contract's consent to jurisdiction clause). Concluding there is no substantive difference as to the performance of contractual *obligations* by a plaintiff assignee on the one

⁵ See Court of Appeals, Unpublished Opinion, at p. 8 n.3.

hand and a defendant Personal Guarantor on the other hand, and notwithstanding the clear and well established law regarding the construction and enforcement of Personal Guarantees laid down by this Court, the Court of Appeals, Division I, held that Bartz was *obligated* to submit to the personal jurisdiction of the State of Washington and the venue of the King County Superior Court. This Court's review is necessary and is warranted pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1); RAP 13.4(b)(2); and RAP 13.4(b)(4).

A. The Court Of Appeals' Decision Conflicts With This Court's Well Established, Long Standing Rules And Decisions Regarding The Construction And Enforcement Of Personal Guarantees – RAP 13.4(b)(1)

This Court has well established, long standing, and very clear rules of construction applicable to contracts of guaranty. The Court of Appeals decision grounded solely on a 9th Circuit Court of Appeals decision regarding a contract assignee's consent to jurisdiction (as plaintiff) conflicts with this Court's decisions. Stated more bluntly, the Division I decision totally ignores this Court's long standing rules regarding the construction and enforcement of contracts of guaranty.

A personal guarantee is a separate and distinct contractual undertaking subject to well-established principles of construction laid down by this Court over 100 years ago and since followed by our courts, except for the drastic departure of Division I in the present case concerning Bartz.

This court . . . has held that . . . guarantors are not to be held liable beyond the express terms of their engagement. This doctrine is well established and has the sanction of the supreme court of the United States. *Union Mut. Life Ins. Co. v. Hanford*, 145 U.S. 187.

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 11 OF 19

Simpson Logging Company v. American Bonding Company of Balitimore, 76 Wash. 533, 538, 137 Pac. 127 (1913). See also W. T. Raleigh Company v. Langeland, 145 Wash. 525, 529, 261 Pac. 93 (1927) ("The amount of a guarantor's liability [is] controlled by the terms of the contract of guaranty as construed by the general rules of construction; and where the terms have been ascertained, the contract will be strictly construed for the purpose of confining the amount of the liability of the guarantor to the precise terms.").6 Although addressing the monetary amount of a guarantor's liability, the foregoing decisions of this Court long ago laid down the fundamental principles that Washington courts have uniformly followed where the issue was construing the intent and scope of a contract of guaranty. More recently, this Court applied these same fundamental principles to determine if a guaranty of a commercial lease signed by the president of a corporate tenant was enforceable against the president personally, although he signed the guaranty in a representative capacity. Wilson Court Limited Partnership v. Tony Maroni's, Inc., 134 Wash.2d 692, 952 P.2d 590 (1998).

Also a long time rule of construction by this Court fully applicable to contracts of guaranty: "[w]hen the language of a contract is susceptible of two constructions, one favorable and the other unfavorable to the party who has drafted or supplied the instrument [here, Radiance Capital], the court will not ordinarily construe it in such a way as to place one of the parties at the mercy of the other, but will adopt that interpretation which is unfavorable to the one who so drafts or supplies it." Clise Investment Company v. Stone, 168 Wash. 617, 620-21, 13 P.2d 9 (1932).

And the foregoing rules are augmented by the additional long standing principle that "courts, under the guise of construing or interpreting a contract, should not make another or different contract for the parties." *Poggi v. Tool Research and Engineering Corporation*, 75 Wn.2d 356, 364, 451 P.2d 296 (1969).

Division I greatly strayed from the well established principles of law applicable to contracts of guaranty laid down by this Court to somehow find as persuasive a 9th Circuit Court of Appeals case regarding the responsibilities of a plaintiff assignee. The 9th Circuit Court of Appeals decision is totally distinguishable from the Bartz case, and the rationale employed by the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals is wholly unpersuasive in determining not only the mutual intent of the parties in the Bartz case but the express and strictly construed scope of the separate contract of guaranty Bartz signed in his individual capacity as a citizen of a foreign State. First, general American jurisprudence has long recognized and held (for even longer than Washington has been a State) that contracts of guaranty are separate and distinct from contracts of assignment.

It is also true, that the contract of assignment, and that of guaranty, are not the same, but are two separate and distinct contracts.

Croskey v. Skinner, 44 Ill. 321, 323 (1867). Second, the assignee of a contract "steps into the shoes of the assignor . . . and assum[es] the [assignor's] status" for all purposes under the assigned contract unless otherwise excluded. Puget Sound National Bank v. Department of Revenue, 123 Wn.2d 284, 292-93, 868 P.2d 127 (1994). Whereas, the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals decision in Republic International is fully consistent with the fundamental rules and legal principles applicable to contracts of assignment, it is equally inconsistent with and totally contrary to the fundamental rules and legal principles applicable to contracts of guaranty.

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 13 OF 19

Division I relied on a 9th Circuit Court of Appeals decision regarding the responsibility of a plaintiff assignee to bring suit for breach of its assigned contract in a foreign country pursuant to the contract's forum selection clause. However, contracts of assignment are separate and distinct from contracts of guaranty, and the rules of construction are thus separate and distinct. The 9th Circuit Court of Appeals decision is thus very clearly distinguishable and inapposite. Division I ignored this Court's very clear and long standing rules for construction and enforcement of contracts of guaranty under which a guaranty is limited in scope to the express terms thereof and such terms are construed most favorably to the guarantor (Bartz) and against the guarantee (Radiance Capital). Under this Court's rules of construction, Bartz, at all times a citizen of a foreign State, did not submit to the personal jurisdiction of the State of Washington or to venue in the Superior Court of King County. The Court of Appeals decision in Bartz thus was in conflict with the decisions of this Court. RAP 13.4(b)(1).

B. The Division I Decision Conflicts With Other Courts of Appeals' Decisions Regarding The Construction And Enforcement Of Personal Guarantees – RAP 13.4(b)(2)

The Division I decision to rely on a 9th Circuit Court of Appeals case in the distinguishable and inapposite context of contract assignments and the responsibility of a plaintiff assignee thereunder, not only ignores and conflicts with decisions of this Court, but it disregards and conflicts with decisions made by our other Courts of Appeals. As so well summarized by the Court of Appeals, Division III, in *Seattle-First National Bank v. Hawk*, 17 Wn.

PETITION FOR REVIEW -- PAGE 14 OF 19

[P]laintiff has presented no evidence of defendant's intent or understanding of what loans were covered by the guaranty. . . . The role of the court is to ascertain the mutual intention of the contracting parties, and the burden of proving such mutual intention rests upon the plaintiff. . . . Here, plaintiff is urging that we infer defendant's intent and thus, the mutual intent of both parties, from the evidence that only establishes plaintiff's intent -- an intent that was never communicated to defendant. This we cannot do. The unexpressed understanding of one of the contracting parties as to the meaning of language is generally of no legal significance. . .. Therefore, the subjective intent of Mr Helm as to the scope of the guaranty, unexpressed and uncommunicated to defendant, does not satisfy plaintiff's burden of proof of the parties' mutual intent.

Therefore, the court properly looked to contract law in reaching its final determination. It is a fundamental rule that guarantors can be held only upon the strict terms of their contract, as a contract to answer for the debt of another must be explicit and is strictly construed. . . . If a contract is equally susceptible of two or more constructions, it should be construed against the party using the language. . . . In other words, where language is ambiguous, the party selecting, drafting, and presenting the contract of guaranty containing such misleading language should suffer any consequences.

Hawk, 17 Wn. App. at 255-56 (citations omitted; emphasis added).8 The foregoing summarizes and embodies the long standing, well established rules governing the construction of contracts of guaranty in this State. Not only did the Court of Appeals, Division I, totally ignore this Bartz-cited decision and its basis for authority in this Court's uninterrupted and long line of decisions, but Division I instead went far afield to find and rely on a 9th Circuit Court of Appeals decision that dealt only with the fortuitous-court

PETITION FOR REVIEW

-- PAGE 15 OF 19

⁸ This Court cited with favor this excellent summary of the rules for construction of contracts of guaranty in its Wilson Court LLC decision. 134 Wn.2d at 701-05.

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