Received Washington State Supreme Court

۰.

DEC 17 2014

Supreme Court No. <u>AIII6</u>9 Court of Appeals No. 71042-7-I King County Superior court No. 12-2-07861-1

Ronald R. Carpenter Clerk

## SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

Radiance Capital, L.L.C., Respondent,

v.

Nicholas W. Bartz Petitioner.

## **REPLY TO PETITION FOR REVIEW**

Shannon R. Jones WSBA #28300 of Campbell, Dille, Barnett & Smith, PLLC 317 South Meridian P.O. Box 488 Puyallup, WA 98371 (253) 848-3513 Attorneys for Respondent Radiance Capital, L.L.C.

ULERKOFTNESUPERIEDUUS

#

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

#### **V. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED**

There is no basis under RAP 13.4(b)(1), (2), or (4) to grant review in this case.

# A. The Court of Appeals' decision is consistent with the decisions of Washington's Supreme Court and other Washington Courts of Appeal regarding personal guaranties.

Bartz alleges the Court of Appeals' decision conflicts with longstanding rules and decisions regarding construction and enforcement of personal guarantees. In actuality, the Court of Appeals decision is entirely consistent with these rules and decisions, including the authorities cited by Bartz.

Bartz first cites <u>Union Mut. Life Ins. Co. v. Hanford</u>, 143 U.S. 187 (1892) and <u>Simpson Logging Company v. American Bonding Company of</u> <u>Baltimore</u>, 76 Wash. 533, 538, 137 Pac. 127 (1913) for the rule that guarantors not be held liable beyond the express terms of their agreement. Bartz then cites <u>Wilson Court Limited Partnership v. Tony Maroni's, Inc.</u>, 134 Wn.2d 692, 952 P.2d 590 (1998) for the rule that guarantors can be held only upon the strict terms of their contract. Bartz later cites to <u>Seattle-First National Bank v. Hawk</u>, 17 Wn.App. 251, 562 P.2d 260 (1977), to reiterate the rule that guarantors be held only upon the strict terms of their contract. The Court of Appeals followed these rules in its analysis.

First, the Court of Appeals identified the express terms of the

guaranty at issue:

٠ ،

• •

"It is undisputed that Bartz promised to 'make all payments and perform all Debtors'(sic) obligations as specified' in the Agreement. CP at 61. The parties disagree about what 'obligations' Bartz assumed by signing the Guarantee. The term 'obligation' is not defined in either the Agreement or the Guarantee. Bartz argues that his obligations under the Guarantee include only the tasks or debts related to the advance and the collateral. Radiance argues that <u>all</u> of the terms of the Agreement, not just the terms related to payments and collateral, are Bartz's obligations under the language of the guaranty." APP-6.

Next, the Court of Appeals analyzed whether the term "all

obligations" included only the tasks or debts related to the advance and collateral, as Bartz urged. The language of the Guaranty refers to making all payments *and* performing all obligations of the debtor, Health Pro; thus, there was a guaranty beyond just making payments. The Court of Appeals found this to be an express indication that Bartz was responsible for the additional obligations of the Health Pro, not just for making payments. APP-7. These "additional obligations" included Health Pro's agreement to submit to the jurisdiction of the State of Washington, King County.

۰.

. .

# B. The Court of Appeals' cited to <u>Republic Int'l Corp</u> because the contract language at issue was similar to this case.

Bartz next cites the long recognized rule that contracts of guaranty are separate and distinct from contracts of assignment (<u>Croskey v.</u> <u>Skinner</u>, 44 Ill. 321,323 (1867)), alleging the Court of Appeals "greatly strayed" from this rule by "finding persuasive" a 9<sup>th</sup> Circuit Court of Appeals decision concerning an assignment as opposed to a guaranty. APP-6, citing <u>Republic Int'1. Corp. v. Amco Engineers, Inc.</u>, 516 F.2d 161, 168 n. 11 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1975). Bartz's criticism is misplaced.

The Court of Appeals did not stray from the rule that contracts of guaranty are separate from contracts of assignment by citing <u>Republic</u> <u>Int'l.</u> The Court of Appeals cited <u>Republic Int'l</u> because it concerned contractual language similar to the instant action; whether the contract was an assignment or a guaranty is irrelevant.

There was a similarity between the assignment and primary contract language in <u>Republic Int'l</u>, and the language of Bartz's Guaranty and the Agreement at issue here. The Court of Appeals noted the similarity – in the <u>Republic Int'l</u> contract, persons agreed to "do every act

and thing necessary to perform all of the conditions of said contracts" and, in this case, Bartz agreed "to make all payments and perform all [Health Pro's] obligations as specified in the [Agreement]." The Court of Appeals noted the <u>Republic Int'l</u> contract had a jurisdictional agreement clause, like the Agreement here. The <u>Republic Int'l</u> court's ruling that the contract language included "among those obligations...the promise to submit to the jurisdiction of the Uruguayan courts" was consistent with the ruling of the Court of Appeals, based on the plain language of the contracts in question. APP-6-7.

**.** ·

. .

Notably, the Court of Appeals rejected Radiance's argument that the Guaranty and the entirety of "Schedule A" were one agreement and incorporated by reference all terms and conditions of the original Equipment Financing Agreement. Consistent with Bartz's argument that a guaranty is a separate and distinct contract, the Court of Appeals found Bartz's guaranty was "a separate legal undertaking from both the Agreement and its appurtenant Schedule A." APP-5.

C. An issue of substantial public interest is not presented when the Court of Appeals followed standard rules of contract interpretation to enforce the plain-language of a personal guaranty.

Bartz argues that a substantial segment of the population are now potentially affected or at risk because the Court of Appeals "drastically

depart[ed]" from the rules of construction and enforcement of personal

guaranties. As is thoroughly analyzed above, the Court of Appeals

followed the long-established rules pertaining to personal guaranties, and

Bartz' argument should consequently be rejected.

. •

Bartz claims to have been "involuntarily hauled into a foreign

State" to defendant a lawsuit on a contract to which he was not a party.

See Petition for Review, p. 18. Nothing could be further from the facts.

Bartz signed the original Equipment Financing Agreement, albeit as the

managing (and sole) member of his LLC. That Agreement at paragraph

26 states in BOLD, ALL CAPS font:

"26. CHOICE OF LAW; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DEEMED FULLY EXECUTED AND PERFORMED IN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON AND SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS THEREOF WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CONFLICTS OF LAWS RULES OF SUCH STATE. DEBTOR AGREES TO SUBMIT TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON IN KING COUNTY. EACH CREDITOR AND DEBTOR HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY ACTION INVOLVING THIS AGREEMENT." CP 75.

Bartz initialed the very page on which this obligation is described.

While Bartz complains the term "obligation" in his personal guaranty

should not include this clause, the Guaranty's plain language states

otherwise. An "obligation" is something which a person is bound to do, or

a binding promise, contract, or duty enforceable by law. Webster's

<u>Universal College Dictionary</u>, p. 546 (2001). If the term was meant to refer only to payments owed, as Bartz urges, the Guaranty would not require Bartz "to make all of the payments *and* perform all [Health Pro's] obligations." CP 77. All language beyond "to make all the payments" would be superfluous.

• `

The law affecting the legal rights and interests of guarantors remains unchanged by the Court of Appeals' ruling in this case. This is a case of simple contract interpretation, not involving a substantial public interest.

# D. Bartz is subject to Washington jurisdiction under the long-arm statute.

Interpreting the Guaranty to subject Bartz to Washington jurisdiction under paragraph 26 of the Agreement, the Court of Appeals did not reach the issue as to whether Bartz would be subject to Washington jurisdiction under the long-arm statute. RCW 4.28.185. Under that statute, a person who performs certain actions in Washington submits to the jurisdiction of Washington State, which actions include transaction of any business in Washington.

The Court may find that exercise of long-arm jurisdiction is a second, independent basis for exercise of jurisdiction over Bartz, even where there is a forum-selection clause. See <u>Kysar v. Lambert</u>, 76

Wn.App. 470, 442, 887 P.2d 431 (1995). The required "purposeful, minimum contacts" with the forum state can consist merely of ordering insurance by telephone and mail (Griffiths & Sprague Stevedoring Co v. Bayly, Martin & Fay, Inc., 71 Wn.2d 679, 430 P.2d 600 (1967)), or answering a phone solicitation and ordering by phone call from a vendor in Washington (Sorb Oil Corp v. Batalla Corp, 32 Wn.App. 296, 299, 647 P.2d 514 (1982)).

• •

Radiance has been located in Washington at all times relevant to this case. This includes when Bartz conducted business with Radiance by obtaining his equipment financing from Radiance. Bartz is subject to long-arm jurisdiction because he contracted with a Washington limited liability company, located in Washington, to obtain his equipment financing. In the Agreement, it is clearly provided that the Agreement is "deemed" (ie. in "the opinion" of the parties considered...) to be fully executed and performed in Washington. CP 59. Under these facts, Bartz had sufficient minimum contacts to subject himself to jurisdiction in this State.

Furthermore, it is reasonable and just that this breach of contract suit be adjudicated in Washington. Bartz now resides in Michigan and the equipment financed by Radiance was originally delivered there. CP 125, 123. But Bartz also had his business located previously in Arizona and

resided there at one time. CP 121-122. His limited liability company, Health Pro, was established in Nevada. CP 122. Bartz says he resided briefly in California during relevant times as well. CP 121. While Agreement lists Bartz' business address in Michigan, Bartz admits the business was closed in 2011 and the collateral equipment was removed to Arizona. CP 124. Finally, Bartz does not know where the equipment is located now. CP 124. In order to recover its collateral equipment, Radiance would likely file suit in the State in which the equipment was located, but due to Bartz' breach of contract, there is no way of knowing where that is. Washington is the suitable place for adjudication of this contract dispute.

• `

#### E. Attorney fees should be awarded Radiance.

Radiance requests and is entitled to its attorney fees and costs incurred on appeal, and for its response to the Petition for Supreme Court review, under paragraph 18 of the Agreement which provides:

"Debtor shall pay Creditor [Radiance] its costs and expenses, including repossession and attorney's fees and court costs incurred by Creditor in enforcing this Agreement. This Agreement includes the payment of such amounts whether an action is file and whether an action that is file is dismissed." CP 75.

Per the Guaranty, Bartz is responsible for the "debtor," Health Pro's, obligation to pay attorney fees and court costs incurred to enforce the Agreement. Radiance requested its attorney fees and costs on appeal, and the Court of Appeals allowed those fees in its ruling. Radiance's Motion for Fees and Costs was timely filed in the Court of Appeals but, evidently in light of this Petition, there has yet to be a final ruling. Radiance reiterates its request for fees and costs, including additional attorney fees and costs related to the Supreme Court review. Bartz's request for fees and costs should be denied.

• `

#### **VI. CONCLUSION**

For the foregoing reasons, the Respondent respectfully requests the Court decline Nicholas W. Bartz' Petition for Review. Respectfully submitted this \_\_\_\_\_ day of December 2014.

Ahannon Jones, WSBA #28300

Shannon R. Jones, WSBA#28300 Attorney for Respondent